
1
City Council Minutes – April 29, 2014

City of Phoenix
City Council Special Meeting

Public Works Office
1000 S. “B” Street

Tuesday, April 29, 2014

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Jeff Bellah called the special meeting of the City Council to order on Tuesday, April 29,
2014 at 6:00 p.m. in the Public Works Office.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Stan Bartell, Bruce Sophie, Karen Jones, Carolyn Bartell, Terry
Helfrich, Chris Luz, Jeff Bellah

Staff Present: Steve Dahl, City Manager/Recorder
Derek Bowker, Chief of Police
J. Ryan Kirchoff, City Attorney

ORDINANCES:
Second Reading of an Ordinance Declaring a Moratorium on Medical Marijuana Facilities
within the City Limits. Mayor Bellah explained that this would be an extension of the
moratorium previously passed for duration through May 1, 2015. Mayor Bellah opened the
public hearing at 6:07 p.m.

THOSE IN FAVOR OF THE ORDINANCE:
No one spoke in favor of the ordinance.

THOSE IN OPPOSITION TO THE ORDINANCE:
Steve Schulman, Phoenix, stated the new ordinance violates the City Charter. He further
expressed the ordinance cannot be enacted as written, as it does not follow the guidelines of the
City Charter.

Brittney Nottingham, Talent, expressed her concern for safe access to medicine.

Tere Knight, Medford, expressed her concern for personal bias from the Council. She further
expressed that she has not seen any of the opposition to medical marijuana facilities before
Council and yet she continuously hears from Council that there is opposition. She went on to
express animosity towards Councilors Stan and Carolyn Bartell for their viewpoints, claiming
that they are ignoring facts. Additionally, she claimed to know the reasons behind their personal
bias and threatened to expose them if she feels further provoked.



2
City Council Minutes – April 29, 2014

Leland Berger, Portland, expressed he is confused about the need for this moratorium, as Ms.
Adams has been meeting with the Council and working with them to offer ways to regulate her
type of business. As he expressed how other cities in Oregon have dealt with medical marijuana
facilities, he conveyed The Greenery is not within twenty miles of a school. He further
communicated it is against legislation to outright ban medical marijuana facilities. He further
discussed current legislation regarding medical marijuana facilities.

As he took questions from Council, Mr. Berger expressed the language in the ordinance passed
in Ashland and Salem that allowed current medical marijuana facilities to be grandfathered in.
Additionally, he explained his understanding of why the pharmacies are not involved with
medical marijuana.

Larry Cowan, Phoenix, expressed he feels the shorter moratorium will force the City to act and
be proactive regarding what is coming in the future regarding recreational use. He further
discussed medical marijuana and its uses and suggested Council look into ways to regulate the
facilities.

Marina Ashrow, Phoenix, communicated she was confused about Council’s apprehension to
medical marijuana facilities with all of the information they have received at Council meetings
and at the Town Hall meeting regarding medical marijuana.

Wade Hall, Ashland, stated working with the current applicants for a MMF is in the best interest
of the City, as the future appears to be headed in the direction of allowing MMFs throughout
Oregon. He further expressed the Council has the opportunity to work with the current
applicants to construct a model for regulating these businesses.

Andrea Adams, Talent, expressed her opposition to the extended moratorium, as it would force
The Greenery to close their doors. She further communicated the effect of closing the business
would have on the community. She explained the importance of safe access to those who are
suffering in need of medical marijuana. Ms. Adams added that this decision may be the biggest
impact on the lives and the health of the people in this community.

Mayor Bellah recessed the meeting for a five minute break at 7:03 p.m.

Mayor Bellah addressed the expressed confusion in public comment regarding extending the
moratorium and explained HB1531 went into effect following the four month moratorium passed
by the City of Phoenix. He further explained the HB 1531 allows for a moratorium to be placed
until May of 2015, and this would allow more time for the City to discern how to deal with
MMFs. Council discussion followed regarding reasons for considering an extended moratorium.

Representative Peter Buckley, expressed the testimonies heard regarding medical marijuana were
very compelling, which prompted the house bills passed regarding this issue. Further discussion
followed as he took questions from Council. He communicated there are some cities that view
the House Bills as sufficient to regulate MMFs and expressed the House Bills are comprehensive
and were created to enable cities to properly regulate MMFs. Rep. Buckley spoke about the
security discussions involved regarding each of the House Bills passed. As discussion



3
City Council Minutes – April 29, 2014

progressed, Rep. Buckley expressed he feels legislation is headed towards regulating growing
medical marijuana.

Councilor Jones inquired whether it is feasible to deal with MMFs by August of this year.
Councilor S. Bartell expressed he feels it may not be enough time. Councilor Jones expressed
she is interested in grandfathering in the two current applicants for MMFs in the City of Phoenix.
Councilor Helfrich agreed and further expressed that this Council should act on this by the end of
year, instead of leaving the decision to possibly three new members on Council. Councilor C.
Bartell expressed her concern for sufficient time to address regulating MMFs. Councilor
Helfrich communicated his concern for losing the applicants, should the extended moratorium
pass.

Mayor Bellah expressed he would like to set a timeframe for enacting a way to handle MMFs
within the City limits. Additionally, he promoted extending a provisional license to the current
two applicants to regulate these facilities for the duration of the moratorium.

Mr. Dahl expressed the quality of the results would be impacted if the moratorium ends in
August. He further explained this is primarily due to staffing in the Planning Department.
Mayor Bellah communicated his concern for the two current applicants. Councilor Jones
inquired about passing a moratorium with language that includes grandfathering in the two
applicants.

Attorney Kirchoff responded by explaining this would go against the Charter currently in place
and this option was not given by State legislation. He further explained that altering the
language in the moratorium would go against State legislation. Further discussion followed, as
he debated the laws regarding the distribution of medical marijuana with Mr. Berger.

Mayor Bellah called for a five minute recess at 7:56 p.m.

Mayor Bellah explained the decision before Council is whether to pass an extended moratorium.
He further explained if Council passes the ordinance as is, the possibility for a provisional
license is not ruled out, as the Council could adopt an amendment to this ordinance at any time
during the moratorium. MOVED BY C. BARTELL, SECONDED BY S. BARTELL, TO
ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 946 DECLARING A MORATORIUM ON MEDICAL
MARIJUANA FACILITIES WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS. Councilor S. Bartell confirmed
Mayor Bellah’s stance on moving forward with the issue of MMFs and suggested Council
inform the two current applicants whether the City plans to provide provisional licenses within
the following two weeks. Further discussion followed regarding changing the timeframe of the
extended ordinance.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Sophie, C. Bartell, S. Bartell, Chris Luz, and Jones
Nays: Helfrich
MOTION APPROVED WITH FIVE AYES TO ONE NAY



4
City Council Minutes – April 29, 2014

Councilor Sophie expressed staff is directed to correct the clerical errors in the ordinance
suggested earlier regarding coinciding with the City Charter. Mayor Bellah directed staff to look
into whether the question concerning medical marijuana facilities could be placed on the ballot
for September for the citizens to vote on.
Mayor Bellah inquired of Ms. Adams and Mr. Hall as to whether they can make a commitment
to offer ways to regulate their business. Both confirmed their commitment.

The meeting adjourned at 8:32 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Attest:

Janette Boothe Steve Dahl
Deputy City Recorder City Manager/Recorder


